#### SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL

### **North East Local Area Committee**

## Meeting held 17 January 2023

**PRESENT:** Councillors Fran Belbin (Chair), Talib Hussain (Deputy Chair),

Jayne Dunn, Mark Jones, Abdul Khayum, Abtisam Mohamed,

Peter Price and Safiya Saeed

## 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

1.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mike Chaplin, Dawn Dale, Tony Damms and Garry Weatherall.

#### 2. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

2.1 No items were identified where resolutions may be moved to exclude the public and press.

#### 3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3.1 There were no declarations of interest.

## 4. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

4.1 The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 25 October, 2022, were approved as a correct record.

#### 5. NORTH EAST LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE BUDGET REPORT

- The Committee considered a report of the Community Services Manager (Lindsey Hill) that advised each Local Area Committee had a £100,000 budget to address local priorities, identified within their respective Community Plans. The report set out details of the spend in respect of the £100,000 that had been authorised by the Community Services Manager, in consultation with the LAC Chair and in accordance with the delegation granted in September 2021.
- The report highlighted current spend and recommended a further priority. This was a new priority not previously identified in the approved Community Plan, and was requested as an addition following a presentation on the cost of living crisis at the meeting held 25 October, 2022. At the meeting in July 2022, a contingency budget of £20,000 was reserved for the delivery of unforeseen priorities and activities. The LAC was asked to formally agree that responding to the cost of living crisis be identified as a priority, and that the £20,000 contingency budget be reallocated to this priority.

- 5.3 A question was raised by a member of the public as to whether the Local Area Committee budget could be used to provide new community Christmas trees in Firth Park and Wincobank.
- 5.4 In response, the Chair advised that this would be funded from a separate budget. She noted the request and advised that this would be considered by Firth Park Councillors.
- 5.5 Councillor Talib Hussain asked for information on how to apply for grants under the new priority, and what the budget allocation was for this.
- 5.6 In response, Ms Hill advised that any group could apply for up to £500 for their welcoming place, and this was on a 'first come, first served' basis. She added that all welcoming places could advertise their details on the Voluntary Action Sheffield website.
- 5.7 **RESOLVED:** That the North East Local Area Committee: -
  - notes the expenditure against the £100,000 budget to address local priorities in the North East Local Area Committee in 2022/3, as detailed in the report; and
  - ii) agrees that a new Cost of Living priority be added to the Community Plan, as described in the report, and that the contingency budget of £20,000 previously identified be allocated to this priority and used to fund grants for Welcoming Places, as described in the report, or other activities which address this priority.

# 5.8 Reasons for Decision

- 5.8.1 The North East Local Area Committee was asked to note the use of funding as per the previous decision on 23 September, 2021.
- 5.8.2 To agree the allocation of the contingency budget to fund cost of living grants that would deliver projects and activities by organisations and groups to address key priority areas identified in the North East Community Plan.

## 5.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected

5.4.1 The £20,000 contingency fund remained unallocated to spend, other options such as using the funds to deliver lower priority actions in the eight priorities set out in the Community Plan were considered but the deliverable actions were not considered achievable within the remaining three months of 2022/23.

## 6. COMMUNITY INFORMATION CONSULTATION

6.1 Teresa Hogan-Watt, Ward Team Leader (Housing Service) shared a presentation on 'Safer Neighbourhood Services: How we work together to reduce crime and antisocial behaviour in the North East'.

- 6.2 Also present for this item were Sophie Tunnard, Safer Neighbourhood Coordinator (Community Safety Team, Sheffield City Council), Sergeant Scott Sarson, (South Yorkshire Police), Billie-Jo Harris, Resolution Officer (Anti-Social Behaviour Team, Sheffield City Council) and Simon Fysh, Sustainable Communities Officer Team Leader (Antisocial Behaviour Team, Sheffield City Council).
- 6.3 Ms Hogan-Watt outlined a problem that had occurred at Palgrave Road, which started out as low-level anti-social behaviour but had gradually escalated into a complex situation. A vacant house had been boarded up, and subsequently block paving had been stolen from the front garden, and someone was found to be living in a shed in the garden. Neighbourhood Officers had attended in an attempt to move the person on, and had advised him to present as homeless. Community Safety Officers were also involved, and as they worked shifts, were able to patrol the area. Copper piping was found in the shed and, when confronted, the occupant became aggressive and was removed by police officers. He subsequently returned and set up a tent in the garden of the property, and would not accept help in relocating. It was later discovered that he was removing bricks to gain entry to the house, and by doing this, had been able to strip the house of its boiler and radiators. He had transported materials at night and had burned waste in the garden during the day. Ms Hogan-Watt stated that initially residents had felt too scared to contact support teams, and some had left their homes due to harassment and damage to their properties. However, she confirmed that they gradually became engaged with officers and began to report issues and work together in order to gain intelligence.
- 6.4 Sophie Tunnard advised that her role as a Safer Neighbourhood Coordinator was to coordinate multi-agency problem solving. She explained that she was based at Ecclesfield Police station and had a close working relationship with other partner agencies. She had gathered information from partners and residents to understand the complexity of the problem and the individuals involved, to allow her to identify the issues to be tackled. She noted that the situation was having an impact on the lives of those living in the community, and a long-term solution was needed, which was not achievable by any one sole agency. Local intelligence and information gathering had helped the team to understand the personal circumstances of the individual involved, and whether there might be other factors that were driving his behaviour. She advised that a referral was made to the Changing Futures Team to address any support that might be needed, and a joint action plan was then devised.
- 6.5 Sergeant Scott Sarson advised that it had quickly become apparent that partnership working was needed. There were other unoccupied properties in this area, and this had led to incidents such as fire, thefts, burglary, anti-social behaviour, criminal damage and fly-tipping. He noted that public confidence and fear had been significantly impacted for those living nearby and that, at the same time, offender confidence had increased. Sergeant Sarson explained that the Police Team began using the property as a 'Police Community House', and it was used for both overt/covert purposes in order to gain an increased knowledge of offenders and patterns of criminality. He noted that there was an immediate

increase in public confidence and decrease in offender confidence. The 'broken window' effect was put into reverse and the immediate area around the property stabilised. After two and a half years, the house repairs were completed, and a new tenant moved into the property within days of the police moving out.

- 6.6 Billie-Jo Harris reported that the Anti-Social Behaviour Team became involved as this was an urgent case that required legal intervention. Officers were tasked with patrolling at different hours of the day to gather evidence that could support legal action. This included door-knocking, WhatsApp messages, photographic evidence and incident logs. She confirmed that the evidence that had been collected via the different teams resulted in an injunction being applied for, which was then granted and served on the individual.
- 6.7 Simon Fysh explained that his role as a Sustainable Communities Officer had been to support the other agencies involved. This was done by providing evidence and community intelligence to support legal action, providing support to individuals, including victims and witnesses, and providing visible patrols.
- 6.8 Ms Harris advised that the actions that were taken collectively helped to reassure residents and build confidence in reporting issues. The injunction that was in place had a number of conditions, and there was the option to take further action if any of the conditions were breached.
- 6.9 Ms Tunnard summarised the outcomes of this multi-agency project, stating that the individual concerned had been given a prison sentence, and had been assigned a probation worker and conditions upon release. Properties in the area had been let to families, unsafe buildings had been secured, refurbishment was planned, residents felt safer and there had been a decrease in crime statistics.
- 6.10 Sergeant Sarson added that, as a result of the multi-agency work carried out, demand on South Yorkshire Police and the South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Services in that area had greatly reduced.
- 6.11 Ms Tunnard shared the following contact details for the teams who were in attendance at the meeting:

Where to report anti-social behaviour issues:

Generic email: <u>ASB@sheffield.gov.uk</u> <u>Pollution and nuisance | Sheffield City Council</u>

Neighbourhood Police team contacts:

Sergeant Matthew Cook- 07557254992 Sheffield North East - SYP (southyorks.police.uk)

Council Housing Service:

Telephone: 0114 2930000

- A member of the public (Mick Daniels) raised concerns that the multi-agency approach did not work and was costly, and he asked why other solutions weren't considered, such as fitting a burglar alarm to the property. He queried how much rent was 'lost' while the property was vacant and was being used as a community house. He also believed that there were not enough wardens in the area.
- 6.13 Ms Tunnard advised that a figure for lost rent had not been calculated and that a multi-agency had been appropriate for this case. She added that this had been a unique situation and that this level of damage had not been seen in the city before.
- 6.14 In relation to the query about alternative solutions, Sergeant Sarson confirmed that other tactics had been considered, but were not deemed to be appropriate at that time.
- 6.15 Mr Fysh confirmed that there were four Senior Sustainable Community Officers and 18 Sustainable Community Officers that operated across Sheffield.
- 6.16 Councillor Peter Price stated that this type of work had been rationalised due to lack of government funding, and that different solutions were needed for different areas.
- 6.17 Melanie King (Sanctuary Housing) was of the opinion that the approach taken had been positive. She was aware that it may have been costly, but believed that more properties would have otherwise remained empty.

#### 7. ROADSHOW INTERACTIVE SESSION

7.1 The Local Area Committee and members of the public were invited to browse the information stalls situated around the room which contained information relating to the different priorities of the North Local Area Committee Community Plan.

#### 8. **COMMUNITY SAFETY**

8.1 Megan Ohri, Partnership Manager at Southey and Owlerton Area Regeneration (SOAR), advised that SOAR was a community anchor organisation based at Parson Cross that worked across north east Sheffield. She explained that a consultation across north east Sheffield had gone live online today, that aimed to look at how people found out what was going on within their community. This would be a two-way conversation, and aimed to help people understand how they might input into Local Area Committee priorities. Paper copies of the consultation were available to take away and to share with those not present at the meeting. Ms Ohri confirmed that this consultation was being carried out in partnership with the Burngreave Messenger community newspaper, and aimed to understand how residents preferred to receive community information and news. She welcomed insights from residents, and advised that her team would be happy to attend meetings of local organisations in order to gain more views.

8.2 The Chair thanked Ms Ohri for attending, and advised that the Local Area Committee Team would also share the consultation information in order to help gain a clear idea of what people want and to help reach further into communities.

#### 9. PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS

- 9.1 The Committee received the following questions from a member of the public who had submitted the questions prior to the meeting, and who attended the meeting to raise them:-
  - (a) <u>Graham Jones, resident of Burngreave and Member of the Burngreave Clean</u> <u>Air Campaign</u>

In view of the imminent introduction of a City Centre Clean Air Zone which, through traffic displacement, is forecast to worsen already illegal levels of air pollution along some of our local roads, what measures are being taken in north east Sheffield to minimise this health and life threatening assault on some of the poorest districts in the city? Is the city council giving these areas additional finance to reduce this deliberate threat to our public health? Or does our council accept that our residents are relatively expendable as we live in a sacrifice zone where our life expectancy is already up to ten years less than other some other parts of the city?

In response, the Chair advised that this issue would be referred to the Transport, Regeneration and Climate Policy Committee as it affected all parts of the city. She noted that it was a Government requirement that the Council implement a Clean Air Zone (CAZ), and it was required to be in place until city centre pollution had reduced to specific levels. She added that although the Council had been given some flexibility in how the CAZ was implemented, there were restrictions placed upon how the money received from the charging of vehicles was spent. She appreciated the points raised, and confirmed that many members would have preferred the funding to have been allowed to be invested in different ways across the city where levels of pollution are also high.

Councillor Mark Jones thanked Mr Jones for his ongoing work with this campaign. He believed that the Government had failed to limit pollution effectively and had transferred the responsibility onto the Council. He stated that the Council had received one-third of the funding that had been requested, and agreed that areas outside of the city centre would be affected by road users choosing different routes. He advised that air monitoring stations in Burngreave had shown that certain areas had high pollution levels. He noted studies that showed that becoming more active could help to tackle certain diseases, but was concerned about the difficulties faced by those with respiratory conditions. He believed that improvements could be made to this situation with more trams, improvements to bus routes and more electric buses. He added that action was needed to ensure residents did not suffer.

Councillor Peter Price added that air quality action had come a long way since the

days of 'smog', but there was still a long way to go, and he believed that it was important that people took some responsibility for their individual travel choice in order to help tackle the problem. He noted that the M1 motorway impacted upon Sheffield's air quality, and believed that it was important to invest in different routes and to improve public transport options.

RESOLVED: That the North East Local Area Committee refer the issue around the potential impact of the Sheffield Clean Air Zone on air pollution across the rest of the city be referred to the Transport, Regeneration and Climate Policy Committee.

The Committee received the following question from Jodie Marshall who was not in attendance at the meeting and had submitted a question prior to the meeting, which the Chair read out:

### (b) Jodie Marshall

As a new parent living in Shiregreen, the amount of illegal parking is forcing me onto the road, people parking on double yellow. Photos have been submitted to Parking Services.

The Chair advised that this information had been passed to Parking Services who would patrol the area. She noted that this was a problem across the region with a limited enforcement team, and she believed that it was important for car owners to take some personal responsibility.

Sergeant Scott Sarson advised that incidents causing obstruction be reported to South Yorkshire Police.

The Committee received the following questions from members of the public who had submitted the questions prior to the meeting, and who attended the meeting to raise them:-

# (c) Mick Daniels

I thought the Local Area Committee was set up to help to tidy estates up. Why is this not happening? I have reported leaf clearing but they've only done half of the estate. Firth Park has the biggest tree canopy in Sheffield but other parts of Sheffield have more frequent leaf clearing. Does the Local Area Committee team walk around the estate? Flytipping is also getting worse.

The Chair confirmed that Local Area Committees had been established in response to the Big City Conversation, which had believed the Council to be a distant and centralised organisation. The aim of Local Area Committees was to connect more with residents. She noted that they were not a substitute for teams such as Housing and Amey, but aimed to make Council Services more responsive and approachable. She advised that Amey had a street cleaning and leaf clearing schedule, and that concerns should be raised directly with Amey or via local Councillors.

Councillor Peter Price noted that it was not possible for the Local Area Committee team to walk around the whole area. He believed that it was important to enable communities so that they were able to help themselves.

Councillor Mark Jones stated that at the meeting of the Waste and Street Scene Policy Committee on 21 December, 2022, a report on Amey's performance had been heard, resulting in Amey being required to increase investment into improving service delivery. He advised that this would be monitored, and hoped that reporting of issues would become easier. He asked that residents continue to report issues affecting them.

The Chair asked that anyone who had been affected by flooding in Longley or Southey Green contact their local Councillors if they needed any further help.

### (d) Public Questioner No. 4

Leaves are a big problem and it is impossible for Amey to clear them because of parked cars. It would be good to have people working together to coordinate this. Flytipping is our responsibility as individuals to report either by contacting Amey or by phoning our local councillors.

The Chair confirmed that she had tried to get a cleaning schedule from Amey but had not been given a specific day when clearing would take place.

- 9.2 Mick Daniels wished to congratulate Councillor Abtisam Mohamed on being nominated as the Labour Party candidate for the Sheffield Central constituency. He asked that she share information publicly so that people were aware that she was still working as a Councillor for Firth Park Ward.
- 9.3 The Chair confirmed that Councillor Mohamed remained a Councillor for the Firth Park Ward.

## 10. FORMAL REFERRALS TO POLICY COMMITTEES

10.1 The Chair provided an update on a referral that was made to the Housing Policy Committee regarding the regulation of private landlords. She confirmed that the Housing Policy Committee had agreed to look at selective licensing as part of a wider review at its next meeting in March 2023. She added that although there was no longer a selective licensing scheme in place in Page Hall, there was one in place in Nether Edge, and lessons learnt from both of these schemes would be evaluated.